
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Helen Johnson

27 November 2018

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL to be held on Wednesday 5 December 2018 
at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS 

To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules 19-22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies.

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 October 2018 
(previously circulated).

4.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 9 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA 

5.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

Public Document Pack



6.  27 GREAT GANETT WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 3DB - 6/2018/1478/EM - 
REPLACEMENT AND EXTENSION OF EXISTING HARDSTANDING TO COVER 
FRONT GARDEN (Pages 5 - 18)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
replacement and extension of existing hardstanding to cover the front garden.  

7.  22 HOMESTEAD LANE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 4LU - 6/2018/0039/EM - 
RETENTION OF SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION TO REAR GARDEN 
OUTBUILDING (Pages 19 - 48)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
retention of single storey side extension to rear garden outbuilding.

8.  UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF 
THE MANAGEMENT SCHEME FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES 
OF THAT SCHEME (Pages 49 - 62)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) to 
update Members with outstanding arbitration cases that were put before the Panel, 
up to and including 12 November 2018.

9.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

10.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Panel is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 11 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Paragraphs 5 (privileged and legal advice) and 6 (statutory 
notice or order) Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.    



PART II

11.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN 

Circulation: Councillors S.Glick (Chairman)
H.Bower
H.Bromley
A.Chesterman

M.Cowan
L.Musk
N.Pace

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Helen 
Johnson, Governance Services on 01707 357467 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Name of Author: Clare Howe

Executive Member: Cllr S. Boulton
Ward: Panshanger

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME PANEL - 5 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

6/2018/1478/EM 

27 GREAT GANETT WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 3DB

REPLACEMENT AND EXTENSION OF EXISTING HARDSTANDING TO COVER 
FRONT GARDEN

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Hills

1. Background

1.1. The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
replacement and extension of existing hardstanding to cover the front garden. 
The application (reference: 6/2018/1478/EM) was refused on the 13 August 
2018 for the following reason:

“The proposal involves the removal of the hedgerow and installation of an 
inappropriate proportion of hard standing which would harm the amenities 
and values of the street scene.  Accordingly, the proposed development is 
contrary to Policy EM 3 and EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme.”

2. Site Description

2.1. The appeal site, 27 Great Ganett, contains a two storey mid-terraced dwelling 
with a pitched roof and forms part of a row of four terrace properties. The 
properties within the terrace are set back from the highway and benefit from soft 
landscaped gardens, with hedgerows on the front boundary line, with breaks for 
car parking access. There is an on-site parking space to the front of the site. 

3. The Proposal

3.1. The proposal is for the installation of a hard surface to the front of the dwelling 
measuring 6.0m in depth and 5.75m wide, totalling to 34.5sqm.  Alongside the 
creation of vehicular access, the applicant seeks to remove the hedgerow on the 
eastern boundary line, which measures 5.75m in length, including the removal of 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



the hedgerow on the southern boundary line (adjacent the highway), which 
measures 3.3 in length. 

4. Relevant Estate Management History

4.1. The Application Number: W6/1995/5094/EM Decision: Granted Decision Date: 
24 April 1995
Proposal: Rear conservatory

4.2. Application Number: W6/1997/5001/EM Decision: Granted Decision Date: 04 
February 1997
Proposal: Erection of a satellite dish. 

5. Policy

5.1. Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008)

EM3 – Soft Landscaping

EM4 – Hard Surfacing 

6. Representations Received

6.1.  None representations have been received in relation to the appeals process.

6.2. One representation was received during the determination of the application: 

Cadent Gas Limited commented that due to the presence of Cadent and/or 
National Grid apparatus in proximity to the specified area, the contractor should 
contact Plant Protection before any works are carried out to ensure the apparatus 
is not affected by any of the proposed works.

7. Discussion

7.1.This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent. The 
appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1 and the original officer’s 
report for application referenced 6/2018/1478/EM is attached at Appendix 2.

7.2. The key issue in the determination of this appeal case is the impact of an 
inappropriate proportion of hardstanding and the loss of soft landscaping 
exacerbating the harm upon the visual amenities and values of the Garden City. 
The assessment concluded the development would not result in adverse harm 
upon residential amenity of adjoining occupiers. 

7.3. In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and in 
order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate 
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme and 
its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes are 
kept in harmony with the original design and concept of the town.

Page 6



7.4. The challenge with Garden City settlements is how to manage change whilst at 
the same time ensuring that the fundamental aesthetics, amenities and values 
of the Garden City remain intact. The need to accommodate the rise in car 
ownership has resulted in pressure for vehicular hard standings on the frontages 
of homes and this has over time resulted in a change to the appearance of 
streets. The removal of excessive areas or prominent landscaping such as trees 
and hedges rather than the hard standing itself can over time erode character.

7.5. Accordingly, the council will only allow hard surfacing (paths, paving, concrete, 
gravelled areas, drives and hard standings) in front gardens for the parking of 
private motor vehicles which retain or create sufficient soft ‘green’ landscaping 
(grass, flower beds, shrubs, trees and hedges) and a sufficient length of 
hedgerow (if applicable) along the frontage of the property to reduce the visual 
prominence of parked vehicles.

7.6. The council will aim to ensure that a significant proportion, around 50 per cent 
unless individual circumstances indicate that this would not be appropriate, of 
the frontage is retained as landscaped ‘greenery’ to retain the appearance and 
ethos of the Garden City. 

7.7. Policy EM3 of the Estate Management Scheme states that works to trees and 
hedgerows will only be allowed where the works would not result in the loss of 
landscaping which would harm the character and amenities of the area and 
where sufficient justification for the works has been given or there are other 
considerations that apply.

7.8. Policy EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme seeks to preserve the unique 
architectural heritage of the town and its buildings and only proposals for hard 
surfacing, for the parking of private vehicles in front gardens will only be allowed 
where the works would retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping and do not result in the loss of any existing hedgerows or 
landscaping along the boundary, other than the minimum required to access the 
hard standing, that would be harmful to the amenities and values of the street 
scene in which it is located.

7.9. The proposed development would result in 91% of the front of no.27 being hard 
surfacing. The proposal would therefore result in an unbalanced proportion of 
soft and hard landscaping. 

7.10. The loss of the hedgerow is not justified in this instance. Furthermore, the loss 
of the hedgerow would result in the amount of hardstanding appearing more 
prominent within the street scene. As a result of the loss of the hedgerow within 
the streetscene the development has a detrimental impact upon the uniform 
character and appearance of the streetscene and wider amenities and values of 
the area. As such, the development is contrary to Policy EM3 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.  

7.11. A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of the appeal. The 
appellant outlines that high levels of on-street parking along Great Ganett, and 

Page 7



that other residential properties have significant amounts of hard standing and a 
lack of landscaping. 

7.12. The appellant attached several photographs, however it is not known if they are 
within the Estate Management Scheme, if enforcement action is currently being 
undertaken and if the appropriate consents have been sought. It is acknowledge 
that the presence of other areas of hardstanding at neighbouring properties can 
be a frustration for applicants, however, every application is considered on its 
own merits and therefore limited weight is given. If details are provided of other 
addresses which may have such hardstandings, these can be considered by the 
enforcement team.

7.13. In addition, the existing street scene, and breaks in the hedging in the area 
informed the original decision. The appellant’s grounds that there are several 
properties with substantial hard standing does not alter the professional opinion, 
as the circumstances of the street scene were taken into account in the original 
decision.

7.14. As mentioned within the Officer’s Delegation Report ‘the applicant notes that 
several other properties within the vicinity have hardstanding exceeding the 
50/50 split. However, the majority of views are obscured due to the front 
hedgerow being retained mitigating harm upon the amenity and values of the 
Welwyn Garden Estate Scheme. Whilst it is noted a couple of dwellings do not 
retain a hedgerow to obscure the significant amount of hardstanding to the front 
of dwellings, it is not considered that this represents a precedent within the area 
and it is also not known if Estate Management has been consented. Furthermore, 
each proposal is considered on a case-by-case instance.’

7.15. A compelling case has therefore not been made by the appellant to demonstrate 
why the circumstances advanced by the appellants of this particular property, 
when considered in its context, should override the wider values and amenities 
of Great Ganett and Garden City. Accordingly, the proposal fails to reflect the 
character and appearance of the terrace properties to which it is located and the 
streetscene of Great Ganett. The proposed development therefore fails to 
maintain the amenities and values of the Estate Management Area.

8. Conclusion 

8.1. No additional evidence or information has been put forward by the appellant 
which adds to or would alter officer’s recommendation. When assessing whether 
any harm would result from the balance of hard and soft landscaping retained, 
as well as the removal of any hedgerow screening, full consideration is given to 
the existing condition of the street scene. In this case, the giving of consent for 
loss of a front facing hedgerow and the amount of hard surfacing proposed would 
cause harm to the values and amenities of the street scene. Accordingly, the 

Page 8



landscaping works proposed fails to accord with policies EM3 and EM4 of the 
Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme.

9. Recommendation

9.1   That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal, with 
the addition of the following informatives –

1.  It is recommended that the applicant contact the planning team in order to 
create a proposal that better meets the aims, purposes and policies within 
the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management Scheme.

Name of Author Clare Howe, 01707 357364

Title Development Management Officer

Date 15 November 2018

Background papers:

Appendix 1: Appellants grounds of appeal

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2018/1478/EM
Location: 27 Great Ganett Welwyn Garden City AL7 3DB
Proposal: Replacement and extension of existing hardstanding to cover front 

garden
Officer:  Ms Clare Howe

Recommendation: Refused

6/2018/1478/EM

Context
Site and 
Application 
description

27 Great Ganett is a two storey residential terraced property situated within
Panshanger ward. The dwelling falls within the Welwyn Garden City Estate
Management Scheme.

The applicant seeks consent for the replacement and extension of existing 
hardstanding to cover front garden.

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act
1967

Relevant history Application Number: W6/1995/5094/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 24 April 1995
Proposal: Rear conservatory

Application Number: W6/1997/5001/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 04 February 1997
Proposal: Erection of a satellite dish

Notifications
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0

Consultee 
responses

Cadent Gas requested that the applicant take no further action with regards to 
your proposal until you hear from the above. We will contact you within 28 
working days from the date of this response. Please contact us if you have not 
had a response within this timeframe.

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3 EM4
Others         

Considerations
Landscaping 
issues (incl. 
hardstandings)

Policy EM4 seeks to retain the appearance and ethos of the Garden City while 
accommodating the increased pressure for vehicle hard standings which has 
resulted from a rise in car ownership. In doing such, Policy EM4 suggests that 
proposals should retain as much soft “green” landscaping as possible, and not 
result in a detrimental loss of hedgerows which can be used to reduce the 
visual prominence of parked vehicles. This policy also applies to side gardens 

Page 17



2 of 2

facing either open space, footpaths or roads.

Policy EM3 also states that works to hedgerows will only be allowed where the 
works would not result in the loss of landscaping which would harm the 
character and amenities of the area. 

The proposal would exceed the retention of 50% soft landscaping, resulting in 
an unbalanced proportion of soft and hard landscaping. In addition, the loss of 
the hedgerow would cause cars to appear dominant within the streetscene, 
thus harming the character and amenities of the area. 

In this instance, the applicant notes that several other properties within the 
vicinity have hardstanding exceeding the 50/50 split. However, the majority of 
views are obscured due to the front hedgerow being retained mitigating harm 
upon the amenity and values of the Welwyn Garden Estate Scheme. Whilst it 
is noted a couple of dwellings do not retain a hedgerow to obscure the 
significant amount of hardstanding to the front of dwellings, it is not considered 
that this represents a precedent within the area and it is also not known if 
Estate Management has been consented. Furthermore, each proposal is 
considered on a case-by-case instance. 

As such, the development would cause detrimental harm to the character and 
amenities of the Garden City contrary to Policy EM3 and EM4. 

Conclusion
The proposal involves the removal of the hedgerow and installation of an inappropriate proportion of 
hard standing which would harm the visual amenities and values of the street scene. Accordingly, 
the hard standing is contrary to Policy EM3 and EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme.

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. The proposal involves the removal of the hedgerow and installation of an 
inappropriate proportion of hard standing which would harm the amenities and 
values of the street scene.  Accordingly, the proposed development is contrary to 
Policy EM 3 and EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

Block Plan Block Plan 3 June 2018
Site 
Location 
Plan

Site Location Plan 3 June 2018

Page 3  Existing 18 June 2018
Page 4  Proposed 18 June 2018

Determined By:

Mr Michael Robinson
13 August 2018

Page 18



             Part I
Main Author: June Pagdin
Executive Member: Cllr. S Boulton
Wards: Howlands

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME PANEL – 5 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

6/2018/0039/EM

22 HOMESTEAD LANE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 4LU

RETENTION OF SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION TO REAR GARDEN 
OUTBUILDING

APPLICANT: Mr V Filipovich

(Howlands)

1 Background

1.1 The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 
“retention of single storey side extension to rear garden outbuilding”.   The 
application was refused on 19 June 2018 for the following reasons:

“1. The proposed outbuilding, by reason of its size, design and siting, would not 
respect and relate to the character and appearance of the surrounding area. 
The proposal therefore fails to be compatible with the maintenance and 
enhancement of the character of this part of Welwyn Garden City, contrary to 
Policy EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme.

and 

2.  The proposed outbuilding, by reason of its size and siting located close to 
the boundary with No’s 41 & 43 Hyde Valley, would result in an overly dominant 
and overbearing structure, impacting adversely upon the living conditions of 
neighbouring residents and thus would be contrary to Policy EM2 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.”

2 Site Description

2.1 The appeal site comprises a 2-storey, semi-detached house and its front and 
rear gardens on the west side of Homestead Lane, Welwyn Garden City.  The 
house has been extended to the side and rear at two storeys.  The rear garden 
contains a pergola and outbuildings.

2.2 The site is relatively flat with residential properties to the north and south and 
the bungalow at No 43 Hyde Valley to the rear (west). The area surrounding 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



the site is characterised by predominately attached 2-storey houses in pairs 
and terraces with hedges and hardstandings in the front gardens typical of 
Welwyn Garden City.   Other properties in the area have smaller outbuildings 
in the rear gardens and many have none.

2.3 Estate Management (EM) Consent was granted, in 2009, for two outbuildings 
in the rear garden:  a wooden summer house and a greenhouse.  The 
greenhouse was destroyed in a fire as were the rear fence and boundary hedge 
with the garden of No 41 Hyde Valley.  The rear fence has been replaced.  The 
wooden summer house remains.

2.4 The EM application to replace the greenhouse with a wooden outbuilding was 
refused in 2015 (6/2015/1509/EM) and was dismissed on appeal.  The 
proposed building had a pitched roof linking into the ridge of the summerhouse 
roof.  The application was refused on grounds of the bulk and size being out of 
character with the area and overly dominant and likely to have an overbearing 
impact on neighbouring residents.

2.5 Subsequently, the ridged roof on the greenhouse replacement was removed 
and replaced with a flat green roof.  This was refused Estate Management 
Consent for the reasons given above in Paragraph 1.1 and is the subject of this 
appeal.

3 The Proposal

3.1 The applicant seeks Estate Management Consent for retention of a wooden 
outbuilding, in place of the previous greenhouse and attached to the authorised 
summerhouse.  This would include:
 Wooden construction
 flat roof planted as a green roof with flowers and sedums
 eaves height approximately 2.5m
 4.1m wide by 7.6m deep
 Abuts side boundary with No 20a Homestead Lane
 Set in from rear boundary fence by approximately 1m

The proposal seeks to overcome the refusal in 2015 and is different because 
the roof is now flat instead of ridged. 

4 Relevant Estate Management History

4.1 Application Number: N6/2008/1471/EM
Decision: Refused
Decision Date: 10 October 2008
Proposal: Erection of part two storey, part single storey side and rear 
extensions, removal of window in rear elevation and insertion of new window in 
rear elevation
N6/2008/1469/FP allowed on appeal.  Now implemented.

4.2 Application Number: W6/2009/0166/EM
Decision: Granted
Decision Date: 08 May 2009

Page 20



Proposal: Erection of rear garden outbuilding and greenhouse

4.3 Application Number: 6/2015/1509/EM
Decision: Refused
Decision Date: 11 December 2015
Proposal: Replacement of outbuildings following fire (Pitched roof)

5 Policy

5.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008)

EM2 – Erection of New Buildings

6 Representations Received 

6.1 The application was advertised by means of neighbour notification letters.  One 
representation was received from the occupiers at 43 The Hyde, which may be 
summarised as:

 Object to people standing on the flat roof which has caused a great deal 
of worry.

A comment was received from Rt Hon Grant Shapps, requesting that account 
is taken at appeal stage of the points Mr Filipovich has outlined in his email.  
These points can be summarised as:

 The proposal complies with permitted development rights under 
planning law

 The changes have been made on the advice of the Fire Brigade to limit 
the chance of further fire damage

 The extension is significantly screened from neighbours’ views by a 
fence and hedge and is not an overly dominant and overbearing 
structure

7 Discussion

7.1 This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent.  The 
appellant’s letter of appeal is attached at Appendix 1.  The original Officer’s 
report for application Reference 6/2018/0039/EM is attached at Appendix 2.

7.2 The key issues in the determination of this appeal are the impact of the 
proposed development upon the amenities and values of the Garden City and 
the impact on the residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers.

Impact on amenities and values of the Garden City

7.3 Policy EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme (EMS) refers to new buildings 
including outbuildings, and states that these will only be allowed where the 
works are in keeping with the design, appearance, materials and architectural 
detail used in the existing building, and would not harm the amenities and 

Page 21



values of the area.  A key element to the amenity and value of the Estate 
Management Area is the spaciousness of the overall layout in both public realm 
and private properties.  This spaciousness is achieved through gaps between 
structures, generous open amenity areas with landscaping and high ratios of 
garden space to built-form within individual plots.  These are features that 
benefit from the protection of the Estate Management Scheme (as distinct from 
the national planning regulations) and distinguish the Estate Management 
Areas from other areas of Welwyn Garden City.

7.3 The extension to the permitted summerhouse was intended to replace the 
greenhouse, which was destroyed in a fire.  The replacement for the 
greenhouse is larger than the original greenhouse.  The extension measures 
31sqm in floor area and more than doubles the size of the footprint of the 
previous greenhouse (14sqm).  In addition, the outbuilding is 4m wide, is joined 
to the summerhouse and abuts the side boundary fence with No 20a.  The 
previous greenhouse was narrow and positioned with 1m spaces along each 
side, maintaining the spacious character of the area.  The new replacement has 
a footprint of 31sqm (approximately), which exceeds the footprint of the 
permitted summerhouse (20sqm).  The “extension” to the summerhouse is not 
subservient to the summerhouse in footprint. 

7.4 The eaves height of the new “extension” is approximately 2.5m, similar to the 
eaves height of the previous greenhouse.  However, the original greenhouse 
was narrower and had a ridged roof constructed in glass that had a minimal 
visual impact.  The flat roof of the outbuilding extension is wider at eaves height  
and built of bulkier materials and does not represent a significant reduction in 
bulk, in terms of visual impact at roof level, from what was previously approved 
(W6/2009/0166/EM).  

7.5 In addition, the extended outbuildings doubles the footprint of the original 
greenhouse and covers the spaces that were along each side of it.  The new 
footprint of the amalgamated outbuilding measures 52sqm in footprint.  The 
structure also has a porch overhang facing into the site and a cover over the 
1m wide passage to the side abutting the garden of No 24 Homestead Lane, 
which extends the building across the width of the garden.  These two features 
add to the bulky appearance of the outbuilding.

7.6 The proportion of garden taken over by outbuildings and structures is now over 
30%. The cover over the side passage takes this to over 35%.  This ratio is 
considered to be excessive.  In addition, the combination of width, depth, height, 
porch overhang and proximity to the boundaries of the outbuilding results in a 
bulky structure and a cramped appearance to the plot.  The 2015 application 
was refused for these reasons. 

7.7 The rear boundary of the site can be seen from Hyde Valley but the outbuilding 
is largely obscured by the roof of the permitted summerhouse and is not unduly 
prominent in the street-scene.

7.8 As a result of the bulk of the agglomerated outbuilding compared to the size of 
the garden, it is considered that the proposal constitutes a disproportionately 
bulky and oversized structure and results in a cramped appearance to the site.  

Page 22



This is out of keeping with the spacious character of the area.  It is, 
consequently, detrimental to the amenities and values of this part of Welwyn 
Garden City Estate Management Area contrary to Policy EM2 of the Estate 
Management Scheme.

Impact on living conditions and the residential amenity of adjoining 
neighbours

7.9 With regard to the impact on the amenity of adjoining neighbours, Policy EM2 
states that any new building should not have a detrimental impact on the 
residential amenity of adjoining occupiers. This is assessed in terms of access 
to day/sun/sky light, privacy, overlooking, overshadowing and dominant 
appearance from an adjoining property.

7.10 The outbuilding is located close to the rear boundary with No’s 41 and 43 Hyde 
Valley and its closest point is approximately 1m from the boundary.  The 
building extends the full width of the garden.

7.11 Nos 41 and 43 Hyde Valley have limited garden depths (12m).  The boundary 
fence is approximately 1.8m high and the outbuilding extension has an eaves 
height of 2.5m.  While the roof is flat, the planting of the green roof does 
increase the height slightly.  The outbuilding is visible from the rear kitchen 
windows and the rear gardens of No’s 41 and 43.  Its overall bulk and width are 
considered to have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of the 
neighbouring occupiers and to be contrary to Policy EM2 of the Estate 
Management Scheme. 

Appellants Grounds of Appeal

7.12 The appellant has submitted the following evidence in support of their appeal:

i) The flat-roofed side extension [replacement for original greenhouse] 
complies with Class E of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development Order) 2015 and was granted a Certificate of 
Lawfulness (Ref No 6/2017/1208/LAWE) and is, therefore, lawful 
development.

ii) The extension is lower than the summerhouse and the original 
greenhouse that it replaces.  It is not visually prominent in its back 
garden location.  Views are materially screened by boundary hedges and 
fences from within surrounding gardens and from public viewpoints on 
Hyde Valley and Homestead Lane.  The proposal is in keeping with the 
character and appearance of the area and in accordance with Policy 
EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

iii) The extension is over 13m from the rear windows of 41 and 43 Hyde 
Valley.  It is screened by a fence 2m high.  The amount of the extension 
that is visible over the fence does not dominate views from the rear 
gardens of No’s 41 and 43.  A quick-growing hedge has been planted, 
which will be allowed to grow over 2.5m high to screen all the extension 

Page 23



from view from No’s 41 and 43. The proposal is in accordance with Policy 
EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme.

7.13 With regard to (i) above, planning legislation is different to the Estate 
Management Scheme and therefore this line of argument is not relevant.  
Turning to ii) and iii), whilst the building is in the rear garden, it can be seen 
over the fence from neighbouring properties and is visible from the street and 
introduces a visually prominent and incongruous addition to the rear garden.  
This is discussed in detail in the earlier sections.  

7.14 Overall the appellant’s supporting evidence is not considered to overcome the 
identified harm of the proposal and it is concluded that the proposal is contrary 
to Policy EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme.

8 Conclusion

8.1 No substantial additional evidence or information has been put forward by the
appellant that adds to or would alter the officer’s recommendation. The
extended outbuilding is unacceptable and has a detrimental impact on the 
character and appearance of the appeal property and the surrounding street 
scene.  It also harms residential amenities of No’s 41 and 43 The Hyde.  The 
outbuilding extension, therefore, causes harm to the values and amenities of 
the area and to the residential amenities of neighbouring occupiers and the 
proposal fails to accord with Policy EM2 of the Welwyn Garden City Estate 
Management Scheme. 

9 Recommendation

9.1 It is recommended that the Panel uphold the delegated decision and dismiss 
the appeal.

Name of Author June Pagdin, 01707 357211
Title Senior Planning Officer
Date 1 November 2018

Background Papers
Appendix 1:  Appellant’s grounds of appeal and attached documents
Appendix 2: Original Officer’s report

Page 24



Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Grounds of appeal for retention of the side extension of a rear garden outbuilding at 22, 
Homestead Lane, Welwyn Garden City. 

Site Description
The side extension is located on the rearmost part of the generally rectangular shaped rear 
garden of 22, Homestead Lane, which is a detached house standing within a line of 
residential development. It is attached to the side of a Swiss chalet type building that was 
erected and given Estate Management approval in 2009. Beyond the rear boundary of 22, 
Homestead Lane there are the rear gardens of Hyde Valley residential properties. (Documents 
A & B)

Estate Management Plan
In both reasons for refusal the Council refer to Policy EM2 of the Welwyn Garden City 
Estate Management Scheme, (EMS), approved in October 2008. This policy states that 
proposals for the erection of new buildings will only be permitted where they do not have a 
detrimental impact on the amenities and values of the surrounding area and the residential 
amenity of adjoining occupiers.

Estate Management History
In 2009 the Council granted Estate Management Approval for the erection of rear garden 
outbuilding and greenhouse, ref: W6/2009/166/EM. The greenhouse, a detached building, has 
been removed due to fire damage. The side extension stands in the footprint of the 
greenhouse. See Documents D & E.

The side extension has been erected by reason of the permitted development rights of the 
occupier. It is fully in accordance with the requirements of Class E of the Town & Country 
Planning (General Permitted) Order. The Council found this to be so when, on 24 November 
2017, it approved a Certificate of Lawfulness for the rear garden outbuilding and the side 
extension, the subject of this appeal, ref: 6/2017/1208/LAWE (Document C). The side 
extension and the rear outbuilding are, therefore, lawful development.

Appeal
The appeal relates solely to the retention of the side extension because the rear garden 
outbuilding to which it is attached has Estate Management Approval.

First reason for refusal
The character and appearance of the area in which the extension stands derives mainly from it 
being a back garden. Important features in the area are the boundary fences and mature 
hedges that enclose the gardens providing privacy and seclusion. The extension is a single 
storey, flat roofed, building. Whilst it extends for a short distance beyond the rear of the 
approved garden building towards the rear boundary, it does not extend further than the 
approved greenhouse did. The height of the extension is lower than that of the approved 
garden outbuilding and the greenhouse that it replaces. The material used in its construction 
is mainly timber. The extension has been constructed to be in keeping with, and subservient 
to, the adjoining outbuilding. It is not visually prominent in its back garden location. Views 
of it from inside and outside all the residential properties in the surrounding area are 
materially screened by boundary hedges and fences. Passersby along Homestead Lane and 
Hyde Valley will not see it for the same reason and the fact it is screened by the mass of the 
existing buildings. The extension is totally in keeping with the approved outbuilding and 
compatible with the back garden character and appearance of the area. My view is that it 

Page 27



enhances the character of this part of Welwyn Garden City even though this is not necessary 
to be in accordance with Policy EM2 of the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management 
Scheme. 

Second reason for refusal
The extension is 2.5m high. It is located over 13m from the windows in the rear elevation of 
41 and 43 Hyde Valley. It is materially screened from the views of the people inside those 
properties by a 2m high boundary fence. I submit that the small amount of the extension 
visible above the fence, at the distance it stands from the windows of Nos. 41 and 43, would 
not be an overly dominant and overbearing structure. The small amount of the extension 
visible above the fence would not dominate the views of people in the rear gardens of Nos. 41 
and 43. It is important to note that (i) the extension would not extend much above the height 
of the average person; and (ii) the rearmost part of the gardens of Nos. 41 and 43 closest to 
the extension would be the areas least likely to be used by the occupiers. The extension 
would not impact adversely upon the living conditions of the occupiers of 41 and 43 Hyde 
Valley. It is important to note that the appellant has planted a quick growing hedge between 
the extension and the rear boundary fence. It will be allowed to grow higher 2.5m, thereby 
screening all of the extension from the view of the occupiers of Nos. 41 and 43.

Other important considerations.
The mass and height of the extension is less than those of the garden outbuilding to which it 
is attached and the height of the greenhouse that it replaces. The Council appears to be acting 
inconsistently in refusing this case when it granted Estate Management Approval for those 
structures. In coming to their decision it is reasonable to assume that the Council found those 
larger buildings had an acceptable impact on the character and appearance of the area and the 
living conditions of the neighbouring residents. 

The extension is a legal development. The Council found this to be so when it issued a 
Certificate of Lawfulness because it is in accordance with Central Government’s 
requirements for permitted development. The reasons for refusing Estate Management 
Approval in this case are the same as those covered by the Government’s requirements for 
permitted development. It is inconceivable that the Government would permit development 
that harmed the character and appearance of the area or the living conditions of neighbours. 
The Council are flying in the face of Government policy in refusing this application and 
taking away the Appellant’s rights. 

The structure is attached to the approved garden outbuilding to satisfy the Fire Brigade’s 
requirement to remove the gap between that building and the approved greenhouse because 
they found the gap had intensified the fire. The fire was caused by rocket lit by some 
unknown person as part of the Diwali celebrations.

Conclusions
The extension is a legal development. The size, design and siting of the extension respects 
and relates well to the character and appearance of the area. The extension is a modest single 
storey flat roofed structure, which is well screened from the views of the occupiers of 41 and 
43 Hyde Valley. It would have little or no impact on their living conditions. The proposed 
building is in accordance with Policies EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme.

Page 28



Documents.
The following documents are submitted in support of this application: 

Document A. Plan of proposed extension and approved outbuilding.

Document B Elevation of proposed extension and approved outbuilding.

Document C Certificate of Lawful Development, ref: 6/2017/1208/LAWE.

Document D The Estate Management Consent granted by the Council to Mr & Mrs V 
Filipovich on 8th May 2009 for the erection of rear garden outbuilding and greenhouse, ref: 
W6/2009/166/EM.

Document E Drawing No. 2233-P-010A. Plans and elevations of the rear garden outbuilding 
and greenhouse, the subject of the Estate Management approval, ref: W6/2009/166/EM.

Document F Site Plan

Document G Block Plan

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document C

To: Mr R Hurley

Notice of Decision 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990

Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015

Approval of Permission

Application No: 6/2017/1208/LAWE

Date of Approval: 24 November 2017

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL, hereby certify that on the 
application date, the operations/development described in the First Schedule 
hereto in respect of the land specified in the Second Schedule hereto and 
edged red on the plan attached to this certificate would have been lawful 
within the meaning of section 191 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

First Schedule: Certificate of lawfulness for the retention of existing rear garden 
outbuilding with new extension Class C3 (Dwelling houses)
Second Schedule: 22 Homestead Lane Welwyn Garden City AL7 4LU
Applicant: Mr V Filipovich
Application Date: 22 June 2017

In accordance with the accompanying plans and particulars subject to the conditions 
listed below:

1. Sufficient evidence has been provided to demonstrate that on the balance of 
probabilities the building works (the outbuilding) was built and substantially 
completed at least 4 years before the date of the application and the lean-to 
extension, the workshop, meets the criteria set out in Class E of the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as 
amended. Accordingly this application is granted a certificate under Section 191 
of the Town and Country planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 10 of The 
Planning and Compensation Act 1991.

DRAWING NUMBERS

2. The development/works shall not be started and completed other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and details:

Plan
Number

Revision
Number

Details Received Date

D A Proposed garden 
outbuilding and 
greenhouse ground floor
plan & elevations

2 June 2017

A Proposed extension and 
approved outbuilding floor 
plan

20 June 2017

B Proposed garden
outbuilding extension 
elevation

20 June 2017

F Location plan 20 June 2017

Page 35



00234391-
FBF194

Site plan 22 June 2017

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with 
the approved plans and details.

Informative(s)

1. The grant of Certificate of Lawfulness does convey approval under the
Estate Management Scheme which the application property is situated. You are 
required to submit a formal application to the Local Planning Authority for the 
retention of the development under the Welwyn Garden City Estate Management
Scheme.

You are advised that the development has been reported to the Council’s 
Planning Enforcement Team for non-compliance with the extant Estate 
Management Scheme.

Colin Haigh
Head of Planning

Page 36



WELWYN 
HATFIELD
BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Campus, Welwyn Garden City 
Herts, AL8 6AE
DX 30075 Welwyn Garden City 1
Tel: 01707 357000
www.welhat.gov.uk

Document D

ESTATE  MANAGEMENT  DECISION NOTICE -  CONSENT

Agent Name And Address

THE ASEP LTD
60 BRIDGE ROAD EAST 
WELWYN GARDEN CITY 
HERTS
AL7 1JU

Applicant  Name And Address

MR & MRS V FILIPOVICH 
22 HOMESTEAD LANE 
WELWYN GARDEN CITY 
AL7 4LU

In pursuance of its powers under the above Scheme the Council hereby APPROVE the 
building, alterations or other works proposed in your application received on 05/02/2009 
subject to the following conditions:-

1. This consent shall expire three years after the date hereof (or such other extended 
date as the Council may agree) unless the works hereby approved shall be completed 
before that date.

2. All works carried out in pursuance of this consent shall be and remain part of the 
Premises and shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the conveyance in all 
respects as if such works had at all times formed part of the Premises.

3. This consent or copy hereof shall be annexed to the Conveyance.

4. There shall be no encroachment over the boundary of the plot either above or below 
ground level, nor any interference with the foundations of the adjoining property without 
the agreement of the adjoining owner or lessee.

5. This consent now issued is given by the Council only in accordance with the 
requirements of the Management Scheme/Conveyance or Leasehold Covenants.

REASON: To comply with the requirements of the Estate Management Scheme

6. The development/works shall not be started and completed other than in accordance 
with the approved plans and details 1:1250 Site Plan & 1:500 Block & 2233-P-01O 
Revision A Plan received and dated 5 February 2009 unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved 
drawings and any changes must be agreed in advance in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

WG/2009/166/EM

ERECTION OF REAR GARDEN OUTBUILDING AND GREENHOUSE 

at: 22 HOMESTEAD LANE WELWYN GARDEN CITY

Page 37



Continuation ...

REASON FOR APPROVAL
It is considered that the proposed development does not have an unacceptably harmful 
impact on the amenities and values of the area in which it is located. It is therefore in 
compliance with the Estate Management Scheme.

Date: 08/05/2009

Tracy Harvey
Head of Development Control

2

Page 38



P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2018/0039/EM
Location: 22 Homestead Lane Welwyn Garden City AL7 4LU
Proposal: Retention of single storey side extension to rear garden 

outbuilding.
Officer:  Mrs June Pagdin

Recommendation: Refused

6/2018/0039/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

The application site comprises a 2-storey, semi-detached house and its front 
and rear gardens on the west side of Homestead Lane, Welwyn Garden City.  
The house has been extended to the side and rear at two storeys.  The rear 
garden contains a pergola and outbuildings.

The site is relatively flat with residential properties to the north and south and 
the bungalow at No 43 Hyde Valley to the rear (west). The area surrounding 
the site is characterised by predominately attached 2-storey houses in pairs 
and terraces with hedges and hardstandings in the front gardens typical of 
Welwyn Garden City. 

EM Consent was granted, in 2009, for two outbuildings:  one wooden summer 
house and a greenhouse.  The greenhouse was destroyed in an accidental fire 
as were the rear fence and boundary hedge with the garden of No 43 The 
Hyde.  The rear fence has been replaced.

The EM application to replace the greenhouse with a wooden outbuilding was 
refused in 2015 (6/2015/1509/EM) and was dismissed on appeal.  The 
proposed building had a pitched roof linking into the ridge of the roof over the 
wooden chalet.  The application was refused on grounds of the bulk and size 
being out of character with the area and overly dominant and likely to have an 
overbearing impact on neighbouring residents.

Subsequently, a flat-roofed outbuilding was constructed to replace the 
greenhouse and is the subject of this application.

Proposed Development

The retrospective Estate Management Consent is sought for 
a wooden outbuilding in place of the previous greenhouse, attached to the 
authorised summerhouse:

• Wooden construction
• flat roof planted as a green roof with flowers and sedums
• eaves height 2.5m
• 4.1m wide by 7.6m deep

Page 45



2 of 4

• Abuts boundary with No 20 Homestead Lane
• Set in from rear boundary fence by approximately 1m

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history Enforcement

Application Number: 2015/0088 Decision: Decision Date: 
Proposal: Operational Development - outbuilding erected without consent

Estate Management

Application Number: W6/2007/1133/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 23 November 2007
Proposal: ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY SIDE & REAR EXTENSION WITH 
ROOFLIGHTS

Application Number: N6/2008/1471/EM Decision: Refused Decision 
Date: 10 October 2008
Proposal: ERECTION OF PART TWO STOREY, PART SINGLE STOREY 
SIDE AND REAR EXTENSIONS, REMOVAL OF WINDOW IN REAR 
ELEVATION AND INSERTION OF NEW WINDOW IN REAR ELEVATION

Application Number: W6/2009/0166/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 08 May 2009
Proposal: ERECTION OF REAR GARDEN OUTBUILDING AND 
GREENHOUSE

Application Number: 6/2015/1509/EM Decision: Refused Decision 
Date: 11 December 2015
Proposal: Replacement of outbuildings following fire (Pitched roof)

Notifications
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 1 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

One response was received form 43 The Hyde.  Comments can be 
summarised as follows:

• Object to people standing on the flat roof which has caused a great deal 
of worry

Consultee 
responses

1. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council - Enforcement

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3
Others         

Considerations
Design (form, 
size, scale, siting) 
and Character 
(impact upon 
amenities and 
values of Garden 

Policy EM2 states that proposals for the erection of new buildings will, only be 
permitted where they do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and 
values of the surrounding area. In particular proposals should respect the 
visual appearance of the area in terms of its siting, scale (height, width) and 
not result in a visually over prominent or discordant element. 

Page 46



3 of 4

City)

The shed is located within the rear garden of the site, whilst the rear boundary 
can be seen from the street scene of Hyde Valley the outbuilding is largely 
obscured by vegetation and thus is not prominent within the street scene. 

The rear garden has an area of approximately 166sqm and the outbuildings 
occupy approximately 52sqm, of the rear garden. The extension to the 
outbuilding covers 31sqm compared to the previous greenhouse, which 
covered 14sqm (2m wide and 7m long) and was set in from the north and rear 
boundaries by approximately 1m.  The wooden outbuildings and their porches 
now reach across the rear of the site.

Whilst the replacement structure is at the rear of the site and the roof is flat, it 
is large in size. It is considered that the structures are of a size that impacts 
adversely upon the values and amenities of the surrounding area contrary to 
policy EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme.

Impact on 
neighbours

Policy EM2 states that proposals for the erection of new buildings will, only be 
permitted where they do not have a detrimental impact on the residential 
amenity of adjoining occupiers.  The impact of a development on the 
residential amenity of neighbouring dwellings is measured in terms of the 
impact on neighbouring properties access to day/sun/sky light, privacy and 
overshadowing. 

The outbuilding is located close to the rear boundary with No’s 41 & 43 Hyde 
Valley and at its closest point would be approximately 1m from the boundary, 
furthermore the outbuilding extends the full width of the garden.

In this regard, it is considered that the outbuilding‘s location close to the 
boundary and overall size in relation to the dwellings to the rear, which have 
limited garden depths, appears dominant and overbearing.  The property at No 
43 has a very short rear garden between the kitchen window and the rear 
boundary.  Whilst there is some loss of light, it is not considered to be sufficient 
to result in a refusal. However, the overall size of the outbuilding is considered 
to have a detrimental impact on neighbouring occupiers and would be contrary 
to policy EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme.  

The neighbour’s concern over people standing on the flat roof and using it as a 
balcony or viewing platform raises the issue of overlooking and loss of privacy.  
This issue could be adequately addressed by the imposition of a condition 
limiting access to the roof for maintenance only and prohibiting use as a 
balcony/veranda. 

Landscaping 
issues (incl. 
hardstandings)
Any other 
considerations 
Conclusion
By virtue of the size, design and siting of the outbuilding, the proposal is unacceptable as it would 
detract from the character and appearance of this part of Welwyn Garden City and would result in an 
overly dominant and overbearing structure to neighbouring dwellings.  As such, the proposal fails to 
comply with Policy EM2 of the Estate Management Scheme.

Page 47



4 of 4

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. The proposed outbuilding, by reason of its size, design and siting, would not 
respect and relate to the character and appearance of the surrounding area. The 
proposal therefore fails to be compatible with the maintenance and enhancement of 
the character of this part of Welwyn Garden City, contrary to Policy EM2 of the 
Estate Management Scheme.

2. The proposed outbuilding, by reason of its size and siting located close to the 
boundary with No’s 41 & 43 Hyde Valley, would result in an overly dominant and 
overbearing structure, impacting adversely upon the living conditions of 
neighbouring residents and thus would be contrary to Policy EM2 of the Estate 
Management Scheme. 

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

3.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

Document F Site Location Plan 11 January 2018
2233-P-010 
Redacted

Doc E Outbuilding as 
Previously

11 January 2018

Document 
A 

Rev 1 Floor Plan 21 March 2018

Document 
B

Rev 1 Elevations 21 March 2018

Determined By:

Mr Gerry Ansell
19 June 2018

Page 48



Part I
Main author: Jonathan Murray
Executive Member: Cllr S Boulton
Wards: Haldens, Handside, Hollybush, 
Howlands, Panshanger, Peartree and 
Sherrards 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ESTATE MANAGEMENT SCHEME APPEAL PANEL – 5 DECEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF THE MANAGEMENT 
SCHEME FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES OF THAT SCHEME

1 Executive Summary

1.1 This report is to update Panel Members with regard to outstanding arbitration 
cases that have been put before the Panel as well as additional cases for 
consideration. 

1.2 A brief update on each property can be found in section 3 below. 

1.3 Additional cases will be presented at the next Panel meeting

2 Recommendation

2.1 That Members:

 Note that the following cases have been referred to the President of the 
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors to appoint an arbitrator:

 72 Chequers

 3 Digswell House Mews

 Five letters have been sent to relevant properties on Daniells and 
several of the owners are now in negotiation with the Council to reach 
an agreed outcome. Another five letters will be issued by Friday 23 
November 2018. 

 Note that letters were issued to the relevant properties on Broomhills at 
the start of this year; however, no retrospective Estate Management 
applications have been submitted. It is expected that authority will be 
requested to take several of these cases to arbitration following the 
outcome of the two cases currently at arbitration: 72 Chequers and 3 
Digswell House Mews. It is considered appropriate to wait until these 
two cases have been determined, so that regard can be given to the 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



Arbitrator’s rulings and the reasons for them. This will provide greater 
certainty on the likely outcome of similar cases. 

3 Individual Cases

3.1 251 Knightsfield

Nature and date of breach: Erection of single storey rear extension without 
Estate Management Consent; commenced June 2013.  

Background information: Officers attended the site at an early stage of 
construction and advised the owner of the need for EM consent for the 
extension.  At that stage footings had only been dug.  However, the owner 
chose to continue with the construction.  A retrospective application for EM 
consent was submitted in June 2013 under application number 
W6/2013/1237/EM, but the submitted plans did not reflect the development as 
built.  The application was, in any event, refused consent in October 2014.

The owner has declined to participate in the arbitration process and has opted 
to carry out works to address the concerns raised against the development. He 
has been advised the only way forward is to replace the roof lantern with a flat 
roof light and to reduce the height of the parapet wall, on all sides, to the level 
proposed under refused application 6/2016/1303/EM.  

The owner has confirmed via e-mail on 15th January 2018 that an architect has 
been commissioned to prepare the necessary drawings for a revised scheme 
to be submitted to the panel for consideration. 

Update: A retrospective Estate Management application was submitted 
(reference 6/2018/2335/EM) on 12th September 2018 along with a planning 
application (reference 6/2018/2344/HOUSE) to try and remedy the breaches of 

Page 50



Estate Management scheme and planning control. Both applications are 
currently being determined.  

72 Chequers

Nature and date of breach: Removal of front hedge and creation of 
hardstanding; date of breach unknown but reported in August 2012.

Background information: The established hedges to the front of the above 
site were removed and the whole front garden has been turned into a 
hardstanding without Estate Management Consent.  There are no other such 
examples of significant hardstandings within the area in which front hedges 
predominate the streetscene. A retrospective application for EM consent was 
submitted under application number W6/2012/1899/EM, which was refused on 
18th December 2012. 

A letter was sent to the owner on 27th July 2016 and a response was received 
on 10th August 2016 explaining why the work had been carried out. The owner 
stated that she works from home and requires a parking space at her property. 
She explained that on-street parking is limited because of the increase in car 
ownership and overspill parking from the nearby Burrowfields Industrial Estate. 

Update: An Arbitrator has now been appointed by the President of the Royal 
Institute of Chartered Surveyors.  The Arbitrator has yet to confirm the date of 
the arbitration hearing. An update on progress will be provided at the next 
meeting.

Page 51



3.2 19 Fearnley Road 

Nature and date of breach: extension to driveway to form 70% hardstanding 
in front garden and the removal of front boundary hedge; date of breach 
unknown but reported in April 2016.

Background information: The previous hardstanding had space for one 
vehicle and the remaining area was soft landscaping. A retrospective 
application for Estate Management consent to try and retain the hardstanding 
was submitted under application number 6/2016/1603/EM and refused on 28th 
September 2016. The owner appealed the decision, the appeal was heard by 
the Panel on 26th January 2017 where the decision was upheld and the appeal 
dismissed.

Update: Discussions have been ongoing with the owner, but no retrospective 
Estate Management application has been submitted. The owner has presented 
an Enforcement Officer with a scheme of proposed actions to try and rectify the 
current breach. However, upon review of these options it has been determined 
that these are unlikely to be looked upon favourably if the scheme is submitted 
as a retrospective Estate Management application. 

Authority was granted at EMAP on 18 October 2018 to refer this case to 
President of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors for arbitration. At this 
stage, it is considered appropriate to wait until the two cases currently at 
arbitration, as detailed above, have been determined, so that regard can be 
given to the Arbitrator’s rulings and the reasons for them. This will provide 
greater certainty on the likely outcome of this case.

Page 52



3.3 11 The Moors

Nature and date of breach: Erection of single storey rear extension that was 
reported in August 2016. The dimensions of the rear extension are 
approximately 6.4m deep, 2.23m to the eaves and 4.85m wide.

Background information: A retrospective application for EM permission was 
submitted under application number 6/2017/1557/EM in July 2017, but it has 
remained invalid ever since. 

Page 53



The owner was advised that it was considered unlikely that EM consent would 
be granted due to the depth of the rear extension and was advised to submit 
an application that proposed alterations e.g. reducing the depth so that it could 
be looked upon more favourably. 

The applicant has been chased several times by the Enforcement Officer and 
the Planning Support officer to provide the additional documents to validate the 
above retrospective application.  However, to date, those details have not been 
submitted. In any event the application seeks to retain the extension as is 
currently built. 

Following failure to submit the requisite information to validate the application 
the department withdrew the application on 26th September 2017. Authorisation 
was therefore sought for the Head of Planning to refer the matter to be 
determined by an arbitrator appointed by the President of the Royal Institute of 
Chartered Surveyors in accordance with paragraph 8 of the Management 
Scheme for Welwyn Garden City.

Following authorisation by the panel in October 2017, a letter was sent to the 
owner on 23rd November 2017 with an invitation to participate in the arbitration 
process to resolve the dispute. 

The owner, however, indicated unwillingness to participate in the arbitration 
process and has informed the team via e-mail on 20th December 2017 that an 
architect has been commissioned to prepare a new scheme for submission to 
the Council for consideration. 

The certificate of lawfulness application (reference 6/2018/1736/LAWE) is 
currently with a planning officer pending determination. 

In regard to the appealing the Estate Management decision (6/2018/0397/EM), 
there is no deadline in which to appeal the decision. However, authority has 
already been approved at the EMAP meeting in October 2017 to commence 
the arbitration process. Once a decision has been reached on application 
6/2018/1736/LAWE, the arbitration letter will be re-issued to the owner inviting 
him to participate in the arbitration process. 

Page 54



3.4 88 Pentley Park 

Nature and date of breach: New raised beds, steps and walls and 
hardstanding to the front of the property. Exact date of breach is unknown but 
complaint was received on 11th April 2016.

Background information: Following warning letters, a retrospective 
application for retention of the works was submitted on 11th May 2016 but was 
refused on 7th July 2016. Following the refusal, the owners have so far ignored 
correspondence requiring the reinstatement of the front garden and have not 
taken up the option to appeal the decision to refuse consent for the retention of 
the works.

Update: The owner has received pre-application advice. The Planning Officer, 
who issued the advice, and the owner are engaged in discussions to reach an 
agreed outcome.  The owner has been advised that if significant progress is not 
made in reaching an agreed solution, then a request to obtain authority to take 
the matter to arbitration will be made. If the matter remains unresolved post 31 
January 2019, then it is likely that a request will be made to refer the matter for 
arbitration.

Page 55



3.5 3 Digswell House Mews 

Background information: The enforcement team were notified that a 
retrospective Estate Management application for a roof light on the front roof 
slope had been refused permission. The owner was contacted and the 
enforcement team were advised that an appeal would be submitted. The appeal 
was heard at the Panel meeting in October 2017 and the Panel dismissed the 
appeal.

Update: An Arbitrator has now been appointed by the President of the Royal 
Institute of Chartered Surveyors.  The Arbitrator has yet to confirm the date of 
the arbitration hearing. An update on progress will be provided at the next 
meeting.

Page 56



3.6 37 Linkfield

Nature and date of breach: Installation of solar photovoltaic panels to the front 
and rear roof slopes of the property. Exact date of breach is unknown but a 
report of the breach was received on 11th January 2017.

Background information: Following a site visit the owner was contacted 
advising action in regard to the solar panels particularly the ones located on the 
front roof slope of the property which the owner was advised were unlikely to 
be granted estate management permission. The enforcement team was 
contacted by the owner who advised that a retrospective estate management 
application would be submitted to try and retain the panels on both the front 
and rear roof slopes.

An Estate Management application to try and retain the solar panels (reference 
6/2018/1096/EM) was submitted and subsequently refused on 15th June 2018.
 
Update: Authority was granted at EMAP on 18 October 2018 to refer this case 
to President of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors for arbitration. At this 
stage, it is considered appropriate to wait until the two cases currently at 
arbitration, as detailed above, have been determined, so that regard can be 
given to the Arbitrator’s rulings and the reasons for them. This will provide 
greater certainty on the likely outcome of this case. 

Page 57



3.7 44 Beechfield Road

Nature and date of breach: Installation of hardstanding to the front of the property. 
Side boundary hedges retained along with a small section of hedge along the front 
boundary.

Exact date of breach is unknown but a report of the breach was received on 6th May 
2014.

Background information: Following a site visit, the owner was contacted in writing 
advising that Estate Management permission was required. A retrospective 
application was submitted (reference W6/2014/1603/EM) however it was refused on 
9th September 2014 because “the formation of such a large amount of hardstanding 
and loss of part of the front hedge erodes and is inconsistent with the immediate 
character of the area and impacts detrimentally on the values and amenities of this 
part of the Garden City”. The hardstanding remains in situ despite the owners being 
aware that the hardstanding is unauthorised.

Update: Authority was granted at EMAP on 18 October 2018 to refer this case to 
President of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors for arbitration. At this stage, it 
is considered appropriate to wait until the two cases currently at arbitration, as detailed 
above, have been determined, so that regard can be given to the Arbitrator’s rulings 
and the reasons for them. This will provide greater certainty on the likely outcome of 
this case.

Page 58



3.8 81 Howlands

Nature and date of breach: Erection of outbuilding.

Exact date of breach is unknown but a report of the breach was received on 8th March 
2016.

Background information: Following a site visit on 24th March 2016 the owner was 
contacted in writing advising that Estate Management permission was required. No 
retrospective application has been received to date.

Update: Authority was granted at EMAP on 18 October 2018 to refer this case to 
President of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors for arbitration. At this stage, it 
is considered appropriate to wait until the two cases currently at arbitration, as detailed 
above, have been determined, so that regard can be given to the Arbitrator’s rulings 
and the reasons for them. This will provide greater certainty on the likely outcome of 
this case.

Page 59



3.9 3 Pinnate Place

Nature and date of breach: Erection of outbuilding. Exact date of breach is unknown 
but a report of the breach was received on 31st May 2016.

Background information: Following a site visit on 7th June 2016 the owner was 
contacted in writing advising that Estate Management permission was required. No 
retrospective application has been received to date.

According to current aerial photography the outbuilding has been completed. 

Update: An Officer visited the site on 9 November 2018 and confirmed that the 
building has been completed, but has yet to be rendered and painted. The owner 
explained that it will be painted and rendered, and that she is keen to resolve the 
matter. In light of this, the Officer invited the owner to apply for Estate Management 
Consent for the outbuilding and to do so before 31 January 2019. If the matter remains 
unresolved post 31 January 2019, then it is likely that a request will be made to refer 
the matter for arbitration.

Page 60



3.10 50 Marley Road

Nature and date of breach: Erection of 100% hardstanding and removal of front 
boundary hedge. Exact date of breach is unknown but a report of the breach was 
received on 19th December 2015.

Background information: Following a site visit on 25th November 2015 the owner 
was contacted in writing advising that Estate Management permission was required. 
No retrospective application has been received to date.

Estate Management application (reference 6/2018/2247/EM) and planning application 
(reference 6/2018/2246/HOUSE) for “erection of a part single, part two storey rear and 
side extension” were both refused on 25th October 2018. The plans submitted with 
both applications do not include the retention of the hardstanding. 

Update: Authority was granted at EMAP on 18 October 2018 to refer this case to 
President of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors for arbitration. At this stage, it 
is considered appropriate to wait until the two cases currently at arbitration, as detailed 
above, have been determined, so that regard can be given to the Arbitrator’s rulings 
and the reasons for them. This will provide greater certainty on the likely outcome of 
this case.

Page 61



 Equality and Diversity

3.11 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in 
connection with the proposals that are set out in this report.

Name of author Jonathan Murray , 01707 357284
Title Principal Planning Enforcement Officer 
Date 12 November 2018

Page 62


	Agenda
	6 27 GREAT GANETT WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 3DB - 6/2018/1478/EM - REPLACEMENT AND EXTENSION OF EXISTING HARDSTANDING TO COVER FRONT GARDEN
	7a - Appendix 1 - Appeallant Statement 27 Great Ganett
	7b - Appendix 2 - Delegated Officer's Report

	7 22 HOMESTEAD LANE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 4LU - 6/2018/0039/EM - RETENTION OF SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION TO REAR GARDEN OUTBUILDING
	6a - Appendix 1 Grounds of Appeal 18 0039EM
	6b - Appellants DocA
	6c - Appellants Doc B
	6d - Appellants Doc C. CoLD docx
	6e - Appellants Doc D EMA 2009
	6f - Appellants Doc E - Plan and elevations of approved extension
	6g - Appellants Doc F  Site plan
	6h - Appellants Doc G Block Plan OSBase
	6i - Appendix 2 Officer Report_620180039EM

	8 UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF THE MANAGEMENT SCHEME FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES OF THAT SCHEME

